
HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS  

1507 MAIN, HAYS, KS 
SEPTEMBER 21, 2015 

6:30 P.M.   
 
  

1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA. 

A.  Minutes of the meeting of August 10, 2015. 

Action:  Consider approving the minutes of the August 10, 2015 meeting. 

B.  Minutes of the meeting of August 17, 2015. 

Action:  Consider approving the minutes of the August 17, 2015 meeting 

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.  

            A.  Public Hearing for a rezoning request of the property at 117 E 7th Street from “C-O” 
Office and Institution District to “C-2” General Commercial & Service District.    
(Case # 15-03Z) 

Action:  Consider a recommendation to the City Commission for the rezoning of 117 
E 7th Street from “C-O” Office and Institution District to “C-2” General Commercial & 
Service District.  

4. NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.     

A. Set the public hearing for a rezoning request for a tract of land located at 1517 
Commerce Parkway from “A-L” Agriculture to “I-1” Light Industrial Zoning District.   
(Case 15-04Z) 

Action:  Consider setting a public hearing for a tract of land located at 1517 
Commerce Parkway from “A-L” Agriculture to “I-1” Light Industrial zoning district. 

B. Preliminary Plat of Replat of Lots 1 & 2, Block 2 and Arnhold Drive, Arnhold’s Industrial 
Addition, Hays, Ellis County, Kansas. (Case # 15-03P)    

 Action:  Consider approval of the Preliminary Plat of the Replat of Lots 1 & 2, Block 2 
and Arnhold Drive, Arnhold’s Industrial Addition.  

C. Final plat known as the Replat of Lots 1 & 2, Block 2 and Arnhold Drive, Arnhold’s 
Industrial Addition, Hays, Ellis County, Kansas. 



Action:  Consider a recommendation to the City Commission of the Final Plat of the 
Replat of Lots 1 & 2, Block 2 and Arnhold Drive, Arnhold’s Industrial Addition.  

D. Consider setting a public hearing for a rezoning of a tract of land for the proposed 
Unrein’s Addition (tract in the SE/4 of Section 16, Township 14 South) from A-L 
(Agricultural) to R-S (Residential Suburban). (See Maps) 

Action:  After discussion with the applicant, consider setting a public hearing for the 
rezoning of said tract .   

E. Review Proposed Changes to the Development Policy. 

 Action:  Discussion of proposed changes to the Development Policy. 

F. Discussion of the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations Rewrite.    

Action:  None  

5. OFF AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS. 

 A.  City Commission action and planning and development updates on Planning 
Commission related issues        

6. ADJOURNMENT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should contact the Planning, Inspection and 
Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time.  Every attempt will be made to accommodate any 
requests for assistance. 



 



 

 1

DRAFT 
HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  

SPECIAL MEETING 
CITY HALL IN COMMISSION CHAMBERS  

AUGUST 10, 2015 
MINUTES  
6:30 P.M.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:    The Hays Area Planning Commission met 
for a special meeting on Monday, August 10, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. in Commission 
Chambers at City Hall.  Vice-Chairman Lou Caplan declared that a quorum was 
present and called the meeting to order.    
 
Roll Call: 
  
Present                                     Lou Caplan      
                                                  Matthew Wheeler                 
                                                  Justin McClung 
                                                  Robert Readle 
                                                  Darrell Hamlin  
                                                  Chris Crawford                          
 
Absent       Tom Denning               Paul  Phillips             Kris Munsch  
              
City Staff in attendance:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager, Greg Sund, Director of 
Public Works, John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, Jesse Rohr, 
Superintendent and Linda Bixenman, Administrative Assistant of Planning, 
Inspection and Enforcement.  
          
2.      CONSENT AGENDA:             
 
          A.      Minutes:   Darrell Hamlin moved, Robert Readle seconded the motion 
to approve the minutes from the July 20, 2015 meeting.  There were no additions or 
corrections to those minutes.  
 
AYES                                      Lou Caplan      
                                               Matthew Wheeler                 
                                               Justin McClung 
                                               Robert Readle 
                                               Darrell Hamlin  
                                               Chris Crawford                          
    
3.    PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:  - None 
                
4.    NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:  
 



 

 2

       A.    Review and Discuss Draft Zoning and Subdivision Regulations:  Jesse Rohr 
presented a power point presentation for discussion of various sections of the draft 
rewrite of the zoning and subdivision regulations to come to a consensus of any 
changes, additions or deletions.  The rewrite had begun in June, 2014 and the 
tentative schedule is to have the changes complete by September 1st and to take 
to the City Commission in November, 2015.  
    
Table 2.2-403 – Child Care/Day Care – “Location” column – Review #3 and #4 The 
following were identified before the commission to consider they be stricken from 
the above table under “location”.    
 
#3  There is no other family day care home or group day care home located on 
the same street segment that terminates in a dead end or cul-de-sac. 
 
#4  The family Day Care home is a minimum of 600 feet from any other family day 
care home and 750 feet from a group day care home, measured along a straight 
line from the closest lot lines.  
 
Darrell Hamlin and Lou Caplan asked what the intention would be for these 
restrictions.  Jesse Rohr answered that these regulations would prevent clusters of 
these types of facilities. There has not been an issue that warrants this type of 
regulation and could be over-burdensome. 
 
Mr. Hamlin asked if there could potentially be a safety issue or nuisance issue.  Mr. 
Caplan noted some cases that had come before the board had voiced concerns 
of parking issues; although nothing had transpired from those concerns. 
 
Justin McClung stated that if it has not been an issue, why make changes over a 
non-issue. 
 
Matthew Wheeler asked if the regulations could be changed back if it would 
become an issue.  Jesse Rohr answered that there is a process for changes. 
 
The consensus was to strike “Location# 3 and # 4” from the above table. 
 
Mr. Readle asked if there was any concern about the restrictions on Location #2 
“The family day care home cannot be located on an arterial street.”  He also 
asked if existing facilities would be affected.  Jesse Rohr answered that it would not 
affect existing facilities. 
 
Darrell Hamlin suggested that they could revise it to be acceptable if there was a 
circle drive or enough space on the property for people to come and go. 
 
This would be considered. 
 
Table 3.1-202A – Building Setbacks – Review in General  The proposed change 
associated with setbacks for residential dwellings are as follows:   



 

 3

 
The zoning district identified as “R-G” Residential General will have a proposed 7 ½ 
foot sideyard building setback standardized for all sizes of interior lots.  The front 
yard building setback would change from twenty-five feet (25’) to thirty feet (30’). 
The street side yard building setback (15 feet) and rear yard building setback (25 
feet) would remain the same. 
 
Currently the interior sideyard setback is measured by 10% of the lot width, with the 
minimum being seven feet (7’) and the maximum being fifteen feet (15’).   With 
the 7 ½ foot sideyard setback, there would be more space for HVAC, window wells 
etc. 
 
He pointed out that there would still be the opportunity to ask for variances to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Lou Caplan stated that he could see no problem.  Matthew Wheeler stated that 
this would be a benefit and help with infill.  
 
It was the consensus to accept the changes. 
 
Sec.  4.1.102  Landscaping and Buffering The proposed changes associated with 
the subject section on landscaping and buffering were as follows: 
 
With the different housing occupancies within the same zoning districts, the buffer 
between single family housing and attached single family housing was stricken 
from the new regulations, although it could be developer driven.  
 
A buffer would be required on multiple-family and townhome dwelling properties.  
 
He pointed out some of the different types of buffer yards and types of buffers for 
parking.  There would be buffers required between the different zoning districts.   
 
This is a section that can be reviewed in depth if necessary. 
 
Table 5.2.102A – Parking Minimums – Review in General The parking requirements 
for a single family home would change from the required 1 1/2 off-street parking 
spaces to two off-street parking spaces.  For a duplex, a total of four off-street 
parking spaces would be required; two parking spaces for each side.  
 
For other multiple dwellings, required parking spaces would be determined by the 
number of bedrooms. 
 
A garage for a vehicle and the driveway each count for an off-street parking 
space.  
 



 

 4

The required commercial parking spaces change from one off-street parking 
space per 200 sq ft to 300 sq ft.  For a restaurant, one off-street parking space 
would be required for every 4 seats.   
 
There are provisions allowed for shared parking for businesses that may operate at 
different times of the day. This would reduce duplicate parking spaces and lessen 
stormwater runoff.   
 
Parking has not been an issue.  
 
Sec. 5.2.206 (B) RV/Boat Parking (See also Sec10.2.106 (B) (2) (d):  This is a 
regulation that limits extended parking of over the road trucks and RV/boat 
parking on commercial parking lots. This is to provide a provision in the regulations 
it could be regulated if it causes people to park elsewhere or it creates traffic 
congestion issues or turning movements etc.   
 
Currently this is a private matter and there are no regulations to regulate this. 
               
Sec. 5.3.101 (F) – Driveway Width – Review specified widths  There is the question 
whether there should be a regulation to restrict the width of a driveway.  The 
rewrite states that the allowed single width is 11 feet, double width is 24 feet and a 
triple width is 30 feet.    
 
Some residents choose to have an extended driveway to the side to 
accommodate more vehicles.   
 
If the width of driveways were regulated, it would require additional burdensome 
enforcement.   
 
Jesse Rohr suggested that since the stormwater regulations deal with how much 
impervious surface is allowed, it could be dealt with under those regulations.   
 
Lou Caplan asked if there was some rational on the respective widths. It was 
determined that a standard parking space is 9 feet.   
 
Matthew Wheeler and Justin McClung agreed it would be burdensome to 
regulate the width of a driveway.  It appeared it was the consensus of the Planning 
Commission that it could be captured within the stormwater regulations. 
 
Sec. 5.4.101 – This section has been forwarded on to MWE for review and comment 
This section has been forwarded to Midwest Energy to review so the language 
works with their standards.  This has been deferred to the experts and would be 
reviewed what they send back to us. 
 
Darrell Hamlin asked if there is an absence of concern since this will be deferred to 
Midwest Energy.   Jesse Rohr answered that they want to adopt what is the same 
standard as Midwest Energy.  



 

 5

 
John Braun stated that these regulations apply to city lighting and private lighting 
like schools, ball fields etc.    
 
It was the consensus of the commission they agreed with deferring to the Midwest 
Energy standards. 
 
Sec. 6.2.202 (E) – Alleys – Surfacing Material (concrete vs rock) The development 
policy does allow alleys even though they are not as common now in new 
developments; although there is a current development with alleys on 33rd and 
Elm. 
 
The discussion is what type of surfacing for the alley.  Now there are sand/rock 
alleys and a few concrete alleys.  The cost of maintenance for the rock alley is 
minimal compared to a concrete alley.  The weeds are to be kept down to the 
middle of the rock alley by each resident owning property with an alley.  The city 
does an annual maintenance on the rock alley.   
 
It is suggested that in certain circumstances that the surface be concrete if the 
alley is used for conveyance of stormwater.  This will keep the rock from draining 
down the stormwater drainage area. 
 
Darrell Hamlin asked if parking is allowed in the alley.  John Bird, City Attorney, read 
from the Hays Municipal Ordinances under “Traffic” that parking or stopping in an 
alley is prohibited.  Jesse Rohr added that per Chapter 26 that an obstruction is 
prohibited in the alley. 
  
Jesse Rohr noted that off street parking is allowed off of a concrete alley.  
 
Darrell  Hamlin asked how the “Strong Town” methodology would apply to the cost 
for the surface of an alley.   
  
Matthew Wheeler asked if the cost per linear foot to maintain the alleys was 
included in the estimated cost of the street maintenance.  Jesse Rohr answered 
that the cost of alley maintenance would need to be added to that if there is an 
alley. 
 
Sec. 6.2.203 – Cul-de-sacs – Pedestrian Connections Cul-de-sacs are allowed; 
although in some ways they may be discouraged.  The maximum length of a cul-
de-sac is 600 feet measured by the nearest curb line.    
 
In some jurisdictions, cul-de-sacs are prohibited because of the difficulty of access  
and the extra distance to cover by refuse trucks, U.S. mail carriers, and pedestrians 
etc. versus having a direct route.  
 
The point of discussion is if there should be a pedestrian connection in some cases 
on a cul-de-sac.   If warranted, a dedicated pedestrian 10 foot access easement 



 

 6

on the  cul-de-sac would be dedicated on the plat. This would apply to only new 
developments.   
 
There were many comments for discussion from the audience as follows:  
 
1.  Who would pay for the construction of the sidewalk of the pedestrian 
connection. 
 
2. Would there be a shared cost between adjoining property owners for the 
sidewalk and maintenance of it. 
 
3.  Would they have to be ADA compliant if there is a substantial grade. 
 
4. Would the dedicated pedestrian easement be in addition to the building 
setback or within the building setback.   It could be that the structure would be 
built right up next to the pedestrian easement.   
 
5.  One member of the audience stated that she liked cul-de-sacs because there 
was no thru traffic and it is peaceful and secure.  She would not be excited about 
a pedestrian easement in the cul-del-sac.  
 
6.  What about an egress window being so close to the pedestrian easement. 
 
7.  Is this what they are seeing in other cities with a pedestrian path thru the cul-de-
sacs. 
 
8.  Could there be a fence next to it 
 
9.  Who is responsible for the snow removal 
 
10.  Why can’t residents walk through the yards now. 
 
11.  Would lighting be needed for those respective sidewalk paths  
 
12.  It was pointed out that the frontage for the Pie shaped lot within a cul-de-sac 
was very narrow. There is limited parking within a cul-de-sac. 
 
13.  It was asked if there would need to be an ADA compliant curb for the access 
to the dedicated pedestrian access sidewalk.   
 
14.  There could be yelling in the windows from the pedestrians walking next to the 
homes.  
 
15.  Who holds the liability if someone gets hurt on the access sidewalk. 
 
16.  What are the proposed trails. 
 



 

 7

Matthew Wheeler explained that they hear more complaints about the distance 
to walk to their destination because of the cul-de-sacs.    
 
John Braun pointed out that this dedicated pedestrian access easement would 
apply to new development with the adoption of the new regulations. 
 
Robert Readle pointed out that it may not be advantageous to have a pedestrian 
easement in all instances.  He used the example of the advantage of having 
access to Seven Hills Park; although no advantage on 45th Street.    
 
Jesse Rohr answered that it would have to warrant a destination before it would 
be required.  It may not happen in each cul-de-sac.  It could not cross more than 
two tiers of lots.  The grade of the land would also be a determinant.   
 
The owner of the property would be responsible for construction of the sidewalk in 
the pedestrian easement.  They would be responsible for snow removal and 
maintenance of the sidewalk like the front and side yard sidewalks.  The easement 
would be solely on a lot, it would not be split between two lots.  There could be a 
fence constructed next to it.  
 
Without the dedicated access easement, access would not be allowed on private 
property. 
 
There would be no lighting; it would be like the sidewalks in front of the homes and 
side streets. 
 
The liability would be the responsibility of the owner of the property.  John Bird 
stated that the city would be protected from any liability.  
 
Justin McClung stated that he was torn based on his experience where he grew 
up; they had golf cart paths that was so convenient.   
 
Robert Readle suggested that this come back to a future meeting.  He stated that 
more time is needed to research this. 
 
Jesse Rohr suggested that they talk with residents and developers to get their 
input. 
 
It was the consensus of the commission to review this again. 
 
Sec. 6.2.208 – Pavement widths – Review this section  In regard to the streets, it is 
recommended that the right of way be reduced from 31 feet to 28 feet.  It is 
recommended that the pavement right of way width be reduced from 60 feet to 
50 feet on most standard residential streets.  This still under research 
 
This would reduce the initial cost to the developer due to less dedicated right of 
way and provide more buildable area.   It would lessen the cost of future 



 

 8

maintenance for the long term and keep the assessment value down for the 
property owner.   
 
Patty Stull, Real Estate Broker, voiced concern about having narrower streets.  She 
stated that the streets are becoming narrower and narrower; she does not like 
narrow streets.  She hated to see this happen in the new subdivisions; she does not 
see it as a benefit to the public.  She can see the benefit to the city but not the 
public.  There would be little room for two-way traffic and emergency vehicles.  
She used the example of an emergency vehicle meeting an SUV in the time of an 
emergency; there would be so little room to get in and out to take care of the 
public.  She was concerned of the safety of the children riding their bikes and 
other.  
 
Several other members of the audience concurred.  
 
John Braun stated that narrow streets have a direct correlation between reduced 
speed and safety.   
 
Jesse Rohr noted that there have been more issues with people speeding down 
Vine Street than issues on narrow streets. 
 
This section lists the different street types. 
 
One of the new types of streets is one with no curb and gutter; instead there is a 
swell/ditch for a vegetative water conveyance system.   This lessens the 
development cost of streets because there would be less stormwater 
infrastructure.  This is a street that would be 60 feet wide.   
 
Matthew Wheeler asked about these types of streets, if it is likely people would 
park in the grassy areas.   He asked about the advantages and disadvantages if 
these types of streets and about their appearance. The streets in Prairie Acres are 
like those streets proposed.  Jesse Rohr answered that it would be like the streets 
along Country Lane and Cottonwood Lane; these right of ways were not 
accepted in the city the way they were constructed because they were narrower 
than the allowed new construction.    
 
Lou Caplan asked if there would be sidewalks.   Jesse Rohr answered that there 
would be sidewalks; although it was uncertain if there would be setbacks for 
sidewalk or curbside sidewalks.     
 
One of the members of the audience voiced concern about the narrow street; by 
having to watch that you did not hit something.  
 
A member of the audience asked if the consultant had done studies to show that 
the narrower street does reduce speed.   Jesse Rohr answered that he can send 
out some studies done that do reflect that there is a direct correlation between 
reduced speed and narrower streets.  



 

 9

 
It was found that there needs to be a correction of the measurement of the cross 
section on the Right-of-Way Table to be the same as the chart.   
 
He noted that there will be a recommendation of some changes to the 
Development Policy in a future meeting.  One change will be that the pavement 
right of way width will mirror what is in the draft zoning regulations rewrite. 
 
Robert Readle recommended checking out the different sizes of streets and come 
back to the commission with their findings.  He noted that he used to live on 
Pershing Court; a good example of a narrow street.    Jesse Rohr answered that he 
would send them a list of streets to check out.  They could go by at different times 
of the day when there might be more traffic.  
 
A lady asked what the reason was to reduce the size.  Jesse Rohr answered that it 
reduces the initial cost to the developer and assessment of cost to lot owner and 
the future liability of maintenance cost for a special assessment.  
   
Sec. 6.2.301 – Sidewalks – Location of Sidewalks – Curb-side vs Set-back  There will 
still be the requirement for sidewalks. It is being drafted that there will be two 
options for the type of sidewalks; curbside or setback.  There are pros and cons for 
each.  They both function well.   
 
The option depends on the street level of safety for pedestrians.   The drawback for 
both is for snow removal.  The sidewalk with the setback gives the pedestrian an 
extra foot of safety.  The drawback is the maintenance of the buffer between the 
street and sidewalk.   
 
The curbside sidewalk is required to be 6 foot wide along an arterial street and 5 
foot wide along a residential street.  
 
One of the commission members asked what drives that decision on the type of 
sidewalk.  John Braun answered that if parking is allowed along the street, the 
curbside would be the better option.  If there is not parking along the street, the 
sidewalk setback option may be considered.  
 
Lou Caplan noted that he has a setback sidewalk in front of this home and when it 
snows, he is glad he has the setback sidewalk. 
 
Matthew Wheeler pointed out that the biggest issue he has heard was of no 
sidewalks on some undeveloped lots including the undeveloped infill lots.   
 
Jesse Rohr answered that they are reviewing the development policy that would 
address this issue.  
 
Chapter 7 – Signs – Consider banners, flags, temporary signs, pennants, spinners, 
etc (This section being reviewed with local sign companies for additional input)  



 

 10

Jesse Rohr stated that they are reviewing the proposed sign regulations with the 
licensed sign companies.    
 
There are some issues with advertising pennant type signs attached to sign poles 
that are not bound by any regulations.   These types of signs are used to advertise 
alcohol, beverages and cigarette and tobacco products by distributors mostly 
located at quick shops.  Some are found along the curb and Vine Street.  There is 
one instance where the pennant flag obstructs the view of traffic at an 
intersection.   
 
A comment from one man in the audience pointed out that he believes the 
distributors contract for payment to the stores to post those signs. 
 
Darrell Hamlin asked that if the signs are tied to revenue generating for the retail 
stores, what would be the impact of disallowing them.   
 
Jesse Rohr answered that he would check into that. 
 
Matthew Wheeler asked if temporary signs were allowed.  Jesse Rohr stated that 
currently there are no provisions for temporary signs; although with the rewrite they 
are allowed if done right.  
 
Sec. 9-1-505 – Open Space Requirements – More Options possibly needed – 
Follow-up with MWE   They are waiting on some language from their consultant 
before it is ready for discussion.  They are working with “open space” ratios.   
 
Sec. 10.1-101 Design Standards – Residential – Building Entrance Location   There 
was a lengthy discussion on this topic and it would be brought back for discussion 
of residential and commercial design at a future meeting.  Some of the highlights 
of the discussion were as follows: 
 
1.  Structure is to face the street and not face sideways for aesthetic reasons; there 
could be multiple other entrances. 
 
An example of utilization of a narrow lot (50’ X 125’), a picture was shown of a 
duplex that faces the street with the other side facing the concrete alley.   
 
It would be possible to have parking in the front and walk to the back of the 
duplex for the second entrance.  
 
2.  Audience member contested the part of the rewrite that states there is to be a 
five foot separation between 24 foot wide driveways such as for a duplex.  There 
would not be enough room. 
 
Audience member stated that this was a perfect example of the conflict between 
the strong city model and the development policy.  To encourage infill, this would 
need to be reconciled so the direction is not on two different tracks.   



 

 11

 
Matthew Wheeler explained the reason this has come up is because there is 
nothing in the code to regulate the standards now for a slab side duplex that can 
be built in the middle of a block without regard. It is not appealing to the 
neighborhood.  It is more attractive when there is access from the street.  
 
It was pointed out by an audience member of a reference of another city 
(Phoenix, Arizona) that utilize the smaller lots by building the structures sideways on 
the lots.  Jesse Rohr asked if they had architectural features on the side of the 
structure facing the street; he thought maybe that could be a compromise.   
 
3.  It was pointed out that the side of a nice building is better in comparison than a 
condemned dilapidated old house.    Jesse Rohr noted that they have to look at 
the long term affect.  It would not be good to replace one undesirable structure 
with another undesirable structure. 
 
4.  Audience member stated the duplex facing front and back would not work in a 
gravel alley.  Building a structure on the side on a narrow lot is more cost effective.  
This can get rid of a $40,000.00 house and replace with a $200,000.00 house or 
other types of residential dwellings and the city would benefit.  Many have to be 
built out of the floodplain.   
 
5.  Audience member voiced concern this was taking the direction of having track 
houses because of the smaller houses and smaller streets.  She said she would hate 
that for the city.  
 
6.  Audience member asked if the development like the one at 33rd and Sherman 
would no longer be allowed.   Jesse Rohr explained that it would not be allowed 
per the rewrite.  He explained about that particular development that had been 
platted years ago per the developer’s choice.  
 
Jesse Rohr pointed out that the only design standard is the front entrance for single 
family and detached and attached single family. 
 
Chris Wente emphasized that developers and builders have to live with this 
document and understand it.  These are the people to be talking to that use this 
document day in and day out.    These are the ones that take the capital risk.  
 
7.  One lady from the audience said she thinks people are frustrated about this 
whole thing.   
 
8.    In regard to commercial design it was discussed of different types of materials 
that may be only allowed in certain zoning districts and prohibited in others.   One 
discussion was on metal buildings.  Audience Member pointed out that there are 
some materials mandated.  
 



 

 12

9.   It was asked about the covenants in a development for design.  Jesse Rohr 
answered that the city does not enforce covenants; this would go through 
litigation if there was an issue.  Another point to consider is those properties in the 
historical district.  
 
Robert Readle suggested continuing the discussion on the design standards at 
another meeting.  
 
Justin McClung asked for addresses and pictures of locations they are trying to 
hinder.   
 
Sec. 10.2-101 (C) (1) through (C) (6) – Detached accessory structures (size, height, 
# of units etc) the two main points to consider is the size and height of an 
accessory building.  The size is 720 sq ft across the board and the height cannot be 
higher than the principal structure restricting it to a maximum of 16 feet to peak.   
 
Robert Readle suggested using the percentage of the lot size for the larger lots to 
determine the size of the accessory structure. 
 
Audience member suggested that the maximum height of an accessory building 
should be able to accommodate at the minimum a 5th wheel camper. 
 
Jesse Rohr stated that they would bring back a couple of options.   
 
Sec. 10.2-(103) (E) and (F) – Fences – Orientation of fences (E) and fencing 
materials (chain link?) (F)  The orientation of fences is to have the picket for the 
fence facing the right-of-ways and the runners on the inside.  A way to capture 
them is to issue a permit or educate the residents.   
 
It limits chain link fencing.  Currently, the Commerce Parkway Overlay District does 
not allow chain link fencing.  The overlay district goes away with the new 
regulations.   
 
With the discussion, Jesse Rohr, stated that maybe chain link fences would be 
disallowed in certain zoning districts and/or along arterial roads.  
 
He asked the commission to be mindful of this as they drive through the city of their 
thoughts on this.  It would stand as written that chain link fences would not be 
allowed unless something comes up to change that.  
 
Sec. 10.2-106 (B) (2) (d) – Boats, RV’s Campers and parking in residential districts  
The difference from the current regulations to the rewrite is that recreational 
equipment/vehicles cannot be parked in the front yard.  They can be parked on 
the side yard and back yard.   They are only allowed in designated residential 
districts.  
 



 

 13

Matthew Wheeler asked if it would go into affect immediately if it stands as written 
in the draft.  Jesse Rohr answered that would be correct.  
 
Darrell Hamlin had pointed out that it may be more likely, it may lend itself to a 
more permanent structure to garage the recreational equipment/vehicle.   He 
asked if they could build something in the language to limit the height of a vehicle 
that could be parked in the driveway.  
 
Jesse Rohr recommended to strike from the regulations because it would be and 
enforcement nightmare.  If there were issues, it could be looked at again.   
 
At this time, this section as written would stay in the regulations unless it is found to 
be revised or stricken from the regulations. 
 
Other: 
 
Chapter 9.1.602   - Monumentation  Darrell Christen, asked about this section.  He 
asked when the property pins when plat is accepted or after construction.  Jesse 
Rohr stated that the intent is after construction. 
 
He asked if there is to be monument on the street centerline.  Jesse Rohr answered 
that they are not to be on the street centerline. (strike A. 2.)  The section line 
corners would stay in place.    
 
Jesse Rohr asked him to send him the state standard language so it could be 
incorporated in this section.  
 
There were points noted that would need to be revised and state standard 
language added.   Jesse Rohr stated they would rework this section. 
 
Multiple Family Design Standards:    It was asked from an audience member about 
the design standards for the Multiple Family dwellings, he asked if it was on all four 
sides.   Jesse Rohr answered this will be reviewed when they review the design 
standards.  He notified they would be notified when there are meetings on 
respective projects.    
 
Hays Board of Realtors Robert Readle stated that the Hays Board of Realtors had 
presented a document prepared by their consultant to articulate their own points 
associated with the rewrite of the regulations.  He will distribute to the commission 
and they can discuss it at a future meeting.  
 
6.  ADJOURNMENT:  Lou Caplan adjourned the meeting at 9:40 p.m.  
 
Submitted by:  Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Assistant 
                          Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  
 
 



 

jrohr
Text Box
This Page Intentionally Left Blank



 

 1

DRAFT 
HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  

CITY HALL IN COMMISSION CHAMBERS  
AUGUST 17, 2015 

MINUTES  
6:30 P.M.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:    The Hays Area Planning Commission met at 
the regularly scheduled meeting on Monday, August 17, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. in 
Commission Chambers at City Hall.  Chairman Paul Phillips declared that a quorum 
was present and called the meeting to order.    
 
Roll Call: 
  
Present                                  Paul Phillips  
                                               Lou Caplan                                                   
                                               Robert Readle 
                                               Darrell Hamlin  
                                              Chris Crawford                          
 
Absent    Tom Denning        Matthew Wheeler     Kris Munsch    Justin McClung      
              
City Staff in attendance:  Greg Sund, Director of Public Works, John Braun, Assistant 
Director of Public Works, Jesse Rohr, Superintendent and Linda Bixenman, 
Administrative Assistant of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement.  
          
2.      CONSENT AGENDA:      None       
 
3.    PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:   
 
A.    Public Hearing for a rezoning request of the property at 1601 E 27th Frontage 
Road from “R-1” Single Family Dwelling District to “R-4” Multiple Family Dwelling 
District:   Paul Phillips explained that per the Kansas Open Meetings Act, that the 
first part of the hearing would be a public hearing for the rezoning request.  Then 
the public hearing would be closed for the commission members to discuss the 
issues relative to the request among themselves.  At that time, the commission will 
approve or disapprove Staff Findings of Fact and second would be a substantive 
motion of their recommendation to the governing body.  
 
Jesse Rohr presented a power point presentation on the overhead visual of the 
staff findings per this request.  The property is located at the intersection of 27th 
Street and Indian Trail.  It is unique in that it abuts 3 separate zoning districts: “R-4”-
multiple family to the west, “C-2” Commercial and Service District to the south and 
further west and “R-1” Single Family to the north and east.  It fronts 27th Street 
Frontage Road.  Infrastructure is in place; it will not require any extension of city 
infrastructure.   
 



 

 2

Because of the location of the property facing 27th street, it is more conducive to 
commercial or higher density residential uses. 
 
It would not be spot zoning as defined in ordinance and state statute because of 
the abutting zoning districts, the multiple-family zoning district would be the same 
as abutting properties to the west.   
 
He read all the uses for the “R-4” zoning district and pointed out those uses from 
the “R-1” zoning district that are the same and the uses that were unique only to 
those respective zoning districts.  
 
He stated that there are two options.  Recommend to the City Commission 
approval of the rezoning request as submitted or recommend denial of the 
rezoning request. 
 
Staff has recommended the rezoning based on the information provided in the 
packet. 
 
Chairman Phillips asked if there were any comments from the audience to address 
the commission.  He explained the process to the audience to come to the 
podium and give their name and comment.   
 
Ms Cutright that lives on E 27th St Terrace came before the commission to point out 
they already have a problem with the Casey’s Quick Shop along 27th Street with 
the noise and bright lights.  There is seldom any nighttime in that area.   
 
She asked if one of the uses would be a “gas station”.   She was concerned about 
more commercial uses.  Jesse Rohr answered that no gas station was included in 
the uses for the “R-4” zoning district.  He displayed all the potential uses allowed by 
right for “R-4” zoning district.   
 
Patrick Carver that lives on E 27th St Terrace came before the board to ask how it 
would impact his property taxes.   
 
Paul Phillips closed the public hearing to allow time for the commission to discuss 
the issues relative to this case.  
 
Robert Readle asked Jesse Rohr for the background information on staff findings of 
fact on the supporting argument for staff’s recommendation that “R-4” was the 
highest and best use of this property.   
 
Jesse Rohr explained that typically a multiple-family dwelling district helps provide 
a buffer between commercial uses and single family homes as in this case where 
the property faces an arterial street (27th Street – traffic thoroughfare) and 
commercial property across the street.  It provides a buffer from the least restrictive 
(Commercial uses) to the most restrictive (Single Family).  
 



 

 3

Paul Phillips asked Jesse Rohr if this rezoning request is only for the subject property 
and not the entire street.  Jesse Rohr answered that the rezoning request is for only 
the designated property.  
 
Lou Caplan asked if the property is one single lot.  Jesse Rohr read the legal and 
size of the parcel.  It would be possible for an owner to go through the lot split 
process for this property whether or not it is rezoned.   
 
Chris Crawford asked if there had been a valuation analysis how this could 
change the property values of adjacent properties.    Jesse Rohr answered that in 
a prior rezoning (33rd and Elm), one of the city commissioners had done a property 
value analysis.   His findings were that none of the property values went down on 
single family homes that were next to duplexes or multiple-family dwelling units in 
Hays. He pointed out that for a rezoning, property values are not part of the 
consideration.   
 
Patrick Carver had one more comment.  Paul Phillips reopened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Carver asked if there were plans for low income housing on the lot.  This was a 
concern to him because he did not want it to be like the low-income housing on 
the west side of Indian Trail where there are ongoing major issues.  What is to say 
the owner would purchase all the properties on the street and construct low-
income housing.  He was also concerned of the impact on the property value of 
his home.   
   
Paul Phillips closed the public hearing and asked to approve or disapprove staff 
findings of fact. 
 
Lou Caplan moved, Chris Crawford seconded the motion to approve staff findings 
of fact.   
 
Vote:  AYES                            Paul Phillips  
                                               Lou Caplan      
                                               Robert Readle 
                                               Darrell Hamlin  
                                               Chris Crawford                          
 
Paul Phillips read the considerations the commission is to consider for the 
substantive motion and they are to include the considerations applicable to their 
motion.   
 
Robert Readle moved to deny the rezoning request based on the consideration 
“to the extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby 
properties.    
 
Motion Failed due to lack of a second. 
 



 

 4

Lou Caplan moved, Darrell Hamlin seconded the motion to recommend to the 
City Commission to approve the rezoning of 1601 E 27th Frontage Road based on 
the considerations of staff findings of fact, the zoning and uses of nearby property 
and the character of the neighborhood. 
 
Robert Readle pointed out that it is fairly unusual to have this much resistance on 
such a small area and the residents have been very clear about it.  He noted that 
he had received a lot of feedback on this rezoning request and thought the other 
commissioners also received the same.   There is a strong opposition to this 
rezoning considering the size of the lot.    
 
Chris Crawford stated that he had received feedback for pros and cons to this 
rezoning request.  
 
 
Vote:  AYES                           Paul Phillips  
                                               Lou Caplan                       
                                               Darrell Hamlin  
                                               Chris Crawford                          
 
          Nay                             Robert Readle  
 
Paul Phillips informed the audience that this recommendation will go before the 
governing body for official action.  It is important to note that those who are for or 
against the rezoning request should attend that respective meeting. 
                
4.    NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:  
 
       A.    Set a Public Hearing for a rezoning request of the property at 117 E 7th 
Street from “C-O” Office Institution District to “C-2” General Commercial and 
Service District:  Jesse Rohr presented a power point presentation to provide the 
information on the above rezoning request.   The property is located at the 
intersection of northwest corner of 7th and Oak Street and stands alone lot with the 
“C-O” zoning classification abutting other zoning districts.   The “C-O” Office and 
Institution zoning district is the most restrictive in commercial uses.  The reason for 
the request for “C-2” zoning is to broaden the scope of the potential uses of the 
property.  The only other “C-O” zoning district is the location of Hays Medical 
Center and offices along Canterbury Drive and High Plains Mental Health on 7th 
Street.   
 
He did not believe there would be any redevelopment of the property, just the 
change of uses.    
 
The zoning districts surrounding the property are as follows: 
 
                         East    -  “C-2” General Commercial and Service District 
                         North  -  “C-3” Central Business District                          



 

 5

                         South  - “C-O” Office and Institution District & “R-4” Multiple family  
                         West   - “R-4” Multiple family 
               
To the east is the Hadley Redevelopment building; to the north is the Commerce 
Bank Drive-Thru and County Administrative Building.  There are multi-family units 
and commercial uses to the west.  There is the High Plains Mental Health Center to 
the south and multi-family units.    
 
Based on this information staff recommends that the Planning Commission set a 
public hearing for the September 21, 2015 Planning Commission meeting.    
 
Paul Phillips asked if any of the uses that are seen less than desirable for that 
property.  Jesse Rohr answered that most of the commercial properties are zoned 
“C-2”.  He explained that the list of the uses would be read at the public hearing.   
 
Chris Crawford asked what would be the restrictions of “C-O” District.  Jesse Rohr 
read the uses of that district.  
 
Phillips asked if there was a reason they did not apply for the “C-3” Central Business 
District.  Jesse Rohr answered that per the matrix chart in the comprehensive plan 
both the “C-2” and “C-3” were compatible for this area.  The decision was left up 
to the owner.  
 
Robert Readle moved, Darrell Hamlin seconded the motion to set the public 
hearing for September 21, 2015 to hear the rezoning request of the property at 117 
E 7th Street from “C-O” Office Institution District to “C-2” General Commercial & 
Service District of fact.   
 
Vote:  AYES                            Paul Phillips  
                                               Lou Caplan      
                                               Robert Readle 
                                               Darrell Hamlin  
                                              Chris Crawford      
 
Jesse Rohr explained about the publication process and notification of the 
property owners within 200 feet will receive the publication notice.    
 
       B.    Discussion of Potential Changes to the Development Policy Infrastructure 
Guidelines: John Braun presented a red-lined copy of the proposed changes to 
the development policy.  Because this document works parallel to the zoning and 
subdivision regulations, it is being updated in conjunction with the rewrite of them. 
                  
This will go before the Utility Advisory Committee in September to give them the 
opportunity for input since they play an important role in the development 
process.  It is scheduled to come back to the Planning Commission in September 
and to the City Commission in October.  It will be submitted for adoption after the 



 

 6

adoption of the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations.     
          
He presented the highlights of the proposed changes to the development policy.    
     

1. The City would not pay for over sizing of infrastructure.  The developer would 
pay for over sizing if required (street, sanitary sewer, water section) 

2. Take out the option of a pre-annexation agreement for water and/or sewer.  
The property would be required to be annexed if they connect to city water 
and/or sewer.   

3. All water mains shall meet the type of material requirements mandated for 
new developments. 

4. Developer required looping water mains within a development specified by 
the Director of Utilities.  The number of feet of the water main to meet 
minimum fire code and water quality requirements. 

5.  Any alleys designed as a mean to convey stormwater should be made of 
concrete rather than a rock alley. 

6. No over sizing the curb and gutter  
7. The street and right of way width subject to what will be written in the zoning 

and subdivision regulations 
8. A traffic impact study at the expense of the developer may be required to 

determine the development’s impact on traffic flow in the area.    
9. As an alternative to curb and gutter there is the option of vegetative water 

conveyance systems (ditches or swales) 
10.  Sidewalks (curbside or setback) required on all new developments  unless a 

alternative means of multi-modal transportation is provided and approved.      
11.  It is to be determined at what stage of the development it will call for all 

sidewalks to be constructed within the development.   
12.  Recommend Use of overlay conveyance of stormwater rather than 

stormwater pipes because it is better for the water quality for requirements 
of EPA and KDHE.  This would eliminate the second life and maintenance 
cost of pipes.   Paul Phillips asked if that would suggest there would be deep 
dips in the streets at the intersections.    John Braun answered that it would 
depend on the design.  It could be valley gutters or culverts. 

13.  Assessment of the cost of pavement is for 10 years.  It has been 
recommended that the assessment of the cost of water and sewer be 
changed from 15 years to 20 years reducing the annual specials on property   
taxes.  

14.  New Language on annexations  
15.  It is the intent of the city to establish Hike and Bike trails that could be the 

form of multi-modal transportation that will be spelled out in the rewrite of 
the zoning and subdivision regulations.  

16. The process of a project will include the acceptance and final close out.  
The engineer will be required to provide the as-built drawing compatible to 
the city software. 

      
      C.    Discussion on the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations Rewrite: Jesse Rohr 
explained about the review of the different sections in process of the rewrite of the 



 

 7

zoning and subdivision regulations.        
       
Jesse Rohr stated that staff had received a memorandum from the Hays Board of 
Realtors with a review of the proposed rewrite of the zoning and subdivision 
regulations by the National Association of Realtors.  
 
Jesse Rohr responded to the concerns about the proposed zoning regulations.   
“Our door remains open for discussion. This is a draft of regulations.  Nothing will 
move forward to adoption until we have a good comfort level.” 
 
Greg Sund appreciated their input.  He also emphasized to the Commission that 
the city manager wants them to know they have his full support.   
   
Paul Phillips asked for the August 10, 2015 special meeting draft minutes in 
advance.            
  
5.  Off Agenda Items/Communications:   
 
      A.    City Commission Action and Planning and Development updates on 
Planning Commission Issues: Jesse Rohr presented the updates.   
  
The owners of the property at 2225 W 41st Street have submitted a request for 
annexation that will be going before the City Commission for action. 
  
6.  ADJOURNMENT:  Chairman Paul Phillips adjourned the meeting at 9:28 p.m.  
 
Submitted by:  Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Assistant 
                          Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  
 
    



 

jrohr
Text Box
This Page Intentionally Left Blank



City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 

Planning Commission Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Rezoning Request – 117 E 7th  

OWNER: Hadley Redevelopment/Dave Van Doren 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Rezoning from C-O (Office and Institution District) to C-2 
(General Commercial and Service District) 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

PREPARED DATE: September 14, 2015 

AGENDA DATE:  September 21, 2015 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
An application has been submitted to request a change of zoning from C-0 (Office 
and Institution District) to C-2 (General Commercial and Service District) – Lots 15 
and 17, Block 6, HP Wilson Addition – 117 E 7th (See attached visuals). 

Based on the considerations of Staff Findings of Fact, staff recommends approval of 
the rezoning request and a favorable recommendation to the City Commission to 
change the zoning from C-0 (Office and Institution District) to C-2 (General 
Commercial and Service District). 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 The plan for redevelopment/infill development on this site is encouraged by 
staff as well as the Comprehensive Plan and follows the Strong Towns 
concept. 

 The property abuts existing Commercial (C-2) zoning, Central Business 
District (C-3) zoning, and Multi-family (R-4) zoning making it quite conducive 
to a wide variety of various zoning districts and uses.  The R-4 zoning is the 
least compatible of those in the area. 

POINTS TO CONSIDER: 
 

 Staff feels the proposed zoning and use of this property is the highest and 
best use for this property (Commercial uses proposed). 

 



 Page 2 

 The owner has requested the rezoning since they wish to use the property for 
other commercial ventures that are not currently allowed in the C-O district, 
which would hopefully allow for increased profit off of the property.  The 
applicant is asked to not be specific as to the exact use to prevent a biased 
decision from being made. All of the uses allowed in C-2 must be taken into 
consideration.  

 
 The subject property, as well as surrounding properties, is designated as 

“Downtown” on the Future Land Use Map and Comprehensive Plan.  This 
area, per the Comprehensive Plan, is designated for mixed uses, primarily 
including commercial, office, and upper level residential. 

 The proposed rezoning request is a good fit for the property as surrounding 
properties are zoned C-3 (Central Business District), C-2 (General 
Commercial and Service) and R-4 (multi-family). 

 
 All public utilities are in place allowing for any future redevelopment of this 

property including public water and sewer. 

OPTIONS: 
 

 Recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL of the rezoning request as 
submitted 

 
 Recommend denial of the rezoning request 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the considerations of Staff Findings of Fact, staff recommends approval of 
the rezoning request and a favorable recommendation to the City Commission to 
change the zoning of Lots 15 and 17, Block 6, HP Wilson Addition (117 E 7th) from  
C-0 (Office and Institution District) to C-2 (General Commercial and Service District). 



jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
Subject Property Area



jrohr
Polygonal Line

jrohr
Text Box
117 E 7th



jrohr
Polygonal Line

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
Subject Property







STAFF FINDING OF FACT 
 

1. CASE NO.:  15-03Z          FILING FEE PAID:  $140.00 
 
2. DATE FILED:  07/23/2015   
 
3. DATE ADVERTISED FOR HEARING:  08/23/2015  
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING DATE:  09/21/2015 
 
5. APPLICANT’S NAME:  HADLEY REDEVELOPMENT LLC     

      
6. LOCATION OF PROPERTY:  117 E. 7TH Street   
 
7. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:  Lots 15 & 17, Block 6, H P Wilson Addition. 
 
8. PRESENT USE OF PROPERTY:  Commercial Use 
    
9. PRESENT ZONING:  “C-O” REQUESTED ZONING:  “C-2” 
 

 
1. CHARACTER OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD: 

DIRECTION 
 
 NORTH:  Commercial/Service  
 
 SOUTH:   Multi-Family 
 
 EAST:      Commercial/Service 
 
 WEST:     Multi-family/Commercial/Service 
 
2. THE ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 

DIRECTION 
 
 NORTH:  “C-3” Central Business District  
                            
 SOUTH:   “R-4” Multiple Family Dwelling District  
 

EAST:     “C-O” Office & Institution District & “C-2” General Commercial & 
Service District   

  
 WEST:     “R-4” Multi-Family Dwelling District  
 



3. CONSIDERATION OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF PERMANENT 
PROFESSIONAL STAFF:    The property abuts existing Commercial (C-2) 
zoning, Central Business District (C-3) zoning, and Multi-family (R-4) zoning 
making it quite conducive to a wide variety of various zoning districts and 
uses.  The subject property, as well as surrounding properties, is 
designated as “Downtown” on the Future Land Use Map and 
Comprehensive Plan.  This area, per the Comprehensive Plan, is 
designated for mixed uses, primarily including commercial, office, and 
upper level residential. 

4. DEDICATION OR RESERVATION NEEDED FOR: 
1. DRAINAGE:  N/A 
2. STREETS:  N/A 
3. UTILITY EASEMENTS: 

a. ELECTRICITY:  Existing 
b. GAS:  Existing 
c. SEWERS:  Existing 
d. WATER:  Existing 

4. SHOULD PLATTING BE REQUIRED:   Property is platted 
 

A. TRAFFIC CONDITIONS: 
1. CLASSIFICATION OF STREET ON WHICH PROPERTY FRONTS:  Local 
2. RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH:     60’ ROW  
3. SIGHT DISTANCE:     OK 
4. TURNING MOVEMENTS:     OK 
5. COMMENTS ON TRAFFIC:     Local 

 
4. THE SUITABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE USES TO WHICH IT HAS 

BEEN RESTRICTED:  The existing zoning is suitable for the property, however, 
expanding to a broader zoning district, such as the proposed “C-2” 
designation, will allow for an expanse of uses above and beyond what is 
currently allowed while still keeping the area compatible with the 
surrounding areas. 

 
5. THE EXTENT TO WHICH REMOVAL OF THE RESTRICTIONS WILL DETRIMENTALLY 

AFFECT NEARBY PROPERTY:  Changing the zoning classification from “C-O” 
Office and Institution District to “C-2” General Commercial and Service 
District should detrimentally affect on nearby properties. 

 
6. THE LENGTH OF TIME THE SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS REMAINED VACANT AS 

ZONED:  The property is not vacant.  The property has been in its current 
zoning status since April, 1995. 

 
7. THE RELATIVE GAIN TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE BY THE 

DESTRUCTION OF THE VALUE OF THE NEIGHBORING PROPERTY, AS 



COMPARED TO THE HARDSHIP IMPOSED ON THE INDIVIDUAL LANDOWNER:  
The proposed rezoning presents more options for the use of the property, 
therefore expanding the possibilities of the owner to utilize the property for 
a wider variety of uses.  The limited number of uses allowed currently may 
be considered a hardship to the owner and may outweigh any possible 
(but unlikely) destruction of value of neighboring properties. 

 
8. THE CONFORMANCE OF THE REQUESTED CHANGE TO THE ADOPTED OR 

RECOGNIZED MASTER PLAN BEING UTILIZED BY THE CITY:  The subject 
property, as well as surrounding properties, is designated as “Downtown” 
on the Future Land Use Map and Comprehensive Plan.  This area, per the 
Comprehensive Plan, is designated for mixed uses, primarily including 
commercial, office, and upper level residential.  

           The request for the “C-2” Commercial And Service District zoning 
classification does blend with the overall scheme of the surrounding 
properties and does meet the intent of the master plan.   

 
With the “C-O” designation being primarily for office/medical uses, and 
since this regional area changed from a primary hospital/medical use to 
general commercial and service uses, there was a need to expand the 
zoning to allow for more uses. 
 
 
Based on these considerations, Staff does recommend the 
change of zoning from “C-O” Office and Institution District to 
“C-2” General Commercial & Service District Zoning 
Classification.  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 

jrohr
Text Box
This Page Intentionally Left Blank



City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 

Memo 
DATE:  September 21, 2015 

TO:  Planning Commission 

FROM: Jesse Rohr 

RE: Rezoning request from A-L (Agricultural District) to I-1 (Light Industrial 
District) – 1517 Commerce Parkway  

An application has been submitted to request a change of zoning from A-L 
(Agricultural District) to I-1 (Light Industrial District) on property located at 1517 
Commerce Parkway (See attached visuals). 

Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission set a public hearing for the October 
19, 2015 Planning Commission meeting to consider the rezoning request.  

A full Staff Findings of Fact will be presented prior to the public hearing.  Following is 
some information about the property to better help guide in the decision to set a 
public hearing for rezoning: 

 Development of this site will require no extensions of public infrastructure 
(water, sewer, street) 

 A lot split was approved by the City on July 1, 2015 splitting off 1.18 acres 
from the parent tract. 

 This property will be annexed as part of the development process and 
development will require connection to City utilities. 

 The property abuts existing Business Park (B-P) zoning with other districts (C-
2 and R-4) nearby. 

 The owner has requested the rezoning to be able to utilize the property for 
commercial ventures not currently available under the A-L designation. 

 
 The subject property, as well as surrounding properties, is designated as 

“Business Park” on the Future Land Use Map and Comprehensive Plan.  This 



 Page 2 

area, per the Comprehensive Plan and the B-P designation, is designated for 
limited industrial, office and research uses. 

 This zoning is compatible to the adjacent B-P zoning.  The reason for the I-1 
recommendation (rather than B-P) is due to the pending zoning changes that 
will occur as part of the rewrite of the zoning and subdivision regulations.  
Under the new draft, the B-P designation no longer exists and has been 
“absorbed” into the I-1 district designation as a blend of the two districts.  
Business Park and Light Industrial are very compatible districts. 

Staff will be available to answer any questions regarding this zoning request prior to 
the public hearing in October, if indeed a hearing is set.  A more detailed memo, as 
well as Staff Findings of Fact, will be provided prior to the public hearing.   







75.48' M

N
 0
1
°2
8
' 2
8
" 
E
  
5
9
4
.1
9
'  
M

S 89°04'19" E  229.49' M

5/8" rebar with cap
CSM LS 715

Existing fence

South Line Tallgrass 3rd Addition  N 89°05'16" W  539.79' M

S 89°06'26" E  310.17' M

55.71' M

South Quarter Corner
S35-T13S-R18W
Found 1/2" rebar of record

South Line of SE/4  N 89°05'37" W (Assumed)  2643.39' M     13th Street

Southeast Corner
S35-T13S-R18W
Found 1/2" rebar with cap
RUDER RLS 918

East Quarter Corner
S35-T13S-R18W
Found 1/2" rebar with cap
CB HAYS CLS 179

E
a
s
t 
L
in
e
 o
f 
S
E
/4
  
N
 0
1
° 2
8
'3
1
" 
E
  
2
6
3
7
.3
1
'  
M
  
  
 C

o
m
m
e
r c
e
 P
a
rk
w
a
y

75.43' M

75.43' M

75.46' R
55.77' R

75.46' R

75.46' R

50.00' R&M
49.91' M
50.00' R

Simpson Realty LLC

E
a
s
t 
L
in
e
 T
a
llg

r a
s
s
 A
d
d
i t
i o
n
  
S
 0
1
° 2
7
'4
8
"  
W
  
1
1
0
0
.0
4
'  
M

1/2" rebar with cap
CB HAYS CLS 179

Point of Commencement

Book 766, Page 53

N
 0
1
°2
8
' 5
0
" 
E
  
5
0
0
.0
9
'  
M

N
 0
1
°2
8
' 3
1
" 
E
  
5
0
0
.0
0
'  
R

1
6
6
.3
3
'  
M

4
2
7
.8
6
'  M

  
4
2
7
. 7
9
' 
R

Point of Beginning
Tract 1

310.20' M  310.00' R

Tract 1
1.18 Acres

Tract 2
8.84 Acres

Point of Beginning
Tract 2

1
6
6
.3
6
'  
R

N 89°05'33" W R&M

166.41' M

166.37' R

Terry and Kelly Schmidt

1521 Commerce Parkway

Hays, KS 67601

Project No: 2015-009

Date: 05-27-2015

Scale: 1" = 150'

Sheet No: 1 of 1

Drawn By: JM

BOUNDARY SURVEY
in the Southeast Quarter of Section 35, Township 13 South, Range 18 West, Ellis County, Kansas

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

I, James Meis, Professional Surveyor #1533 in the State of Kansas, certify that the survey shown on this plat was made 

by me or under my direct supervision on May 27th, 2015.  This plat is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and 

belief.

James Meis

Kansas PS 1533

SURVEY NOTES:

1. Field work completed February 18, 2015

2. Bearings based on the South line of the Southeast Quarter being N 89°05'37" W

75' 0' 75' 150'

LEGEND:

Section Corner

Found 1/2" rebar with cap "RUDER RLS 918"

Found monument - see plat for description

Set 1/2"x24" rebar with cap "MEIS LS 1533"

M Measured

R Record

S

N

EW

J

AM
ES ME I S

L
IC

ENSED

SASNAK

PS-1533 R
O

Y
E

V
R

US LANOI
S

S
E

F
O

R
P

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tract 1

A tract of land located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 35, Township 13 South, Range 18 West of the 6th Principal 

Meridian, Ellis County, Kansas, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of Section 35, Township 13 South, Range 18 West; Thence on an assumed 

bearing of North 89 degrees 05 minutes 37 seconds West along the South line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 

75.46 feet; Thence North 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds East parallel with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a 

distance of 55.77 feet to the intersection of the North line of 13th Street and the West line of Commerce Parkway; 

Thence continuing North 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds East along the West line of Commerce Parkway and 

parallel with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 500.00 feet to the Northeast corner of a tract described 

in Book 766, Page 53 and the Point of Beginning; Thence continuing North 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds East 

along the West line of Commerce Parkway and parallel with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 166.36 

feet; Thence North 89 degrees 05 minutes 33 seconds West a distance of 310.00 feet; Thence South 01 degrees 28 

minutes 31 seconds West parallel with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 166.37 feet to the Northwest 

corner of a tract described in Book 766, Page 53; Thence South 89 degrees 05 minutes 37 seconds East along the 

North line of a tract described in Book 766, Page 53 a distance of 310.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.  Said Tract 1 

contains 1.18 acres more or less and is subject to any easements or rights-of-way of record.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tract 2

A tract of land located in the Southeast Quarter of Section 35, Township 13 South, Range 18 West of the 6th Principal 

Meridian, Ellis County, Kansas, more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeast corner of Section 35, Township 13 South, Range 18 West; Thence on an assumed 

bearing of North 89 degrees 05 minutes 37 seconds West along the South line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 

75.46 feet; Thence North 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds East parallel with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a 

distance of 55.77 feet to the intersection of the North line of 13th Street and the West line of Commerce Parkway; 

Thence continuing North 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds East along the West line of Commerce Parkway and 

parallel with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 666.36 feet to the Point of Beginning; Thence 

continuing North 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds East along the West line of Commerce Parkway and parallel with 

the East line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 427.79 feet to the South line of Tallgrass 3rd Addition; Thence 

North 89 degrees 05 minutes 37 seconds West along the South line of Tallgrass 3rd Addition and parallel with the 

South line of Southeast Quarter a distance of 539.54 feet to the East line of Tallgrass Addition extended North; Thence 

South 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds West along the East line of Tallgrass Addition extended North and parallel 

with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 1099.92 feet to the North line of 13th Street; Thence South 89 

degrees 05 minutes 37 seconds East along the North line of 13th Street and parallel with the South line of the 

Southeast Quarter a distance of 229.54 feet to the Southwest corner of a tract described in Book 766, Page 53; Thence 

North 01 degrees 28 minutes 31 seconds East along the West line of a tract described in Book 766, Page 53 and 

parallel with the East line of the Southeast Quarter a distance of 672.14 feet; Thence South 89 degrees 05 minutes 33 

seconds East a distance of 310.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.  Said Tract 2 contains 8.84 acres more or less and is 

subject to any easements or rights-of-way of record.

DRIGGS DESIGN GROUP, PA
Surveying     Engineering     Planning

James Meis, PS 1533

203 E 7th, Suite D, Hays, Kansas 67601

jmeis@driggsdesign.com     (785) 650-9864

jrohr
Polygon



jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Line



jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Line



jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Text Box
Subject Property



 

jrohr
Text Box
This Page Intentionally Left Blank



City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 

Planning Commission Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Consider the Preliminary and Final Replat of Lots 1 and 
2 and Arnhold Dr. in Arnhold’s Industrial Addition 

OWNER:   Richard A. Arnhold Rev. Trust 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Preliminary and Final Plat 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

DATE PREPARED: September 15, 2015 

AGENDA DATE:  September 21, 2015 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The subject property, known as Arnhold’s Industrial Addition, is under consideration 
for approval of a replat of Lots 1 and 2 as well as the portion of right of way currently 
platted as Arnhold Dr.  This is undeveloped and unimproved property outside the City 
limits located west of Canterbury and north of E 8th St.  Approval of the plat as 
submitted would act to combine two lots (1 and 2) and vacate the right of way platted 
as Arnhold Dr.   Staff recommends approving the plat as submitted and provide 
a favorable recommendation to the City Commission for approval of this plat. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

 The plat of Arnhold’s Industrial Addition was originally approved in 1979, over 
35 years ago. 

 No physical, accepted improvements have ever been made to the area and 
most of the area is completely undeveloped. 

 
POINTS TO CONSIDER: 
 

 The right-of-way of Arnhold Drive has never been improved 
 Any future development of the larger common area would likely require 

replatting of the entire area beyond the plat of Arnhold’s Industrial Addition. 
 Staff from the Public Works and Utilities Departments has been apprised of 

this proposed replat.  There are no known utility conflicts or issues.  This plat 
was also taken before the Utility Advisory Committee with no issues noted.   

 This site will be developed for an electrical substation operated by Midwest 
Energy. 



 Page 2 

 The replat as submitted meets the requirements of the current subdivision 
regulations in regard to lot size, setbacks, and specific utility requirements. 

 
PROS: 

 Replatting of this property cleans up the legal records of combining lots and 
vacating right-of-way therefore making it easier for future development without 
unnecessary hindrances. 

 
CONS:  

 None identified 
 
OPTIONS: 
 
The following options are available for consideration: 
 

 Approve the plat as submitted 
 Request further changes or considerations to the plat 
 Do not approve the plat as submitted 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The continued in-fill of this property, as well as other properties similar to this one, 
should be encouraged.  This is an acceptable change to the City.  Staff 
recommends approving the plat as submitted and provide a favorable 
recommendation to the City Commission for approval of this plat. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Final Plat Map 
 Area Maps 
 Plat Checklist 



jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Line



jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Line









VICINITY MAP
SECTION 3-T14S-R18W 6TH PM

(NOT TO SCALE)

PROJECT
LOCATION

Phone (913) 851-4492 7501 College Blvd. Suite 101
Fax (913) 273-7024 Overland Park, KS 66210

jrohr
Polygon







 
 
 
 

FINAL PLAT CHECK-LIST 
 

NAME OF SUBDIVISION: ARNHOLD’S INDUSTRIAL ADDITION      DATE: 09-11-2015                
 
NAME OF OWNER:             RICHARD A ARNHOLD REV TRUST, BRUCE ARNHOLD, TRUSTEE 
 
NAME OF SUBDIVIDER: MIDWEST ENERGY, INC 
 
NAME OF PERSON WHO PREPARED THE PLAT:  WESTWOOD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INC.  
 
PERSON WHO COMPLETED THIS CHECKLIST:   JESSE ROHR 
 
Instructions: 
 
The following checklist is to be completed by the City Staff and shall accompany the Final Plat when it is 
submitted to the Planning Commission.  Indicate N/A if not applicable. 
 
A. Does the Final Plat show the following information? 
 

YES  NO 

1. Name of Subdivision. X 

2. Location of section, township, range,  
county and state, including the  
descriptive boundaries of the sub- 
division based on an accurate traverse, 
giving angular and linear dimensions 
which must be mathematically correct. 
The allowable error of closing on any  
portion of the plat shall be 1 foot in 
5,000. X 
            

3. Location of monuments or bench marks. 
Location of such monuments shall be 
shown in reference to existing official 
monuments of the nearest established 
street lines, including the true  
angles and distances to such reference  
points or monuments. X 
                   

4. The location of lots, streets, public 
highways, alleys, parks and other features, 
with accurate dimensions in feet and  
decimals of feet with the length of  
radii on all curves, and other infor- 
mation necessary to reproduce the plat 
on the ground.  Dimensions shall be 
shown from all curves to lot lines. X 

         
 



Final Plat Check List  Page 2 
   
 YES NO   
 
5. Lots numbered clearly.  Blocks numbered 

or lettered clearly in the center of  
the block. X 
       

6. Exact locations, widths and names of  
all streets and alleys to be dedicated. X 
           

7. Boundary lines and descriptions of the  
boundary lines of any area other than 
streets and alleys, which are to be 
dedicated or reserved for public use. X 
         

8. Building setback lines on the front 
and side streets with dimensions. X      
 

9. Name and address of the developer, 
surveyor or the licensed engineer 
making the plat. X       

          
10. Scale of plat, 1” = 100’ or larger, 

date of preparation and north point. X 
 

11.       Statement dedicating all easements. X 

12.      Statement dedicating all streets, alleys 
 and all other public areas not previously dedicated. X 
 
B. Were the original (on mylar, tracing cloth  

or similar material ) and 20 copies sub- 
mitted?     X 

 
C. Signatures?   

1. Owner or owners and all mortgagers.                                                                               X 
a. Notarization or notarizations.                                                                                        X      

2. Engineer, surveyor or person preparing 
plat.                                    X 

    
D. Has a title opinion been submitted? (CERT OF TITLE)                 X 

 
E. Have the plat and dedication papers been submitted?                                                 X 
 
F. Deed restrictions: 

1. Are any deed restrictions planned for  
subdivision?  N/A 
 

2.  If so, has a copy been submitted?  N/A 
 
Comments:  
 



VICINITY MAP
SECTION 3-T14S-R18W 6TH PM

(NOT TO SCALE)

PROJECT
LOCATION

Phone (913) 851-4492 7501 College Blvd. Suite 101
Fax (913) 273-7024 Overland Park, KS 66210

jrohr
Polygon



 

jrohr
Text Box
This Page Intentionally Left Blank



City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 

Memo 
DATE:  September 15, 2015 

TO:  Planning Commission 

FROM: Jesse Rohr 

RE: Rezoning request from A-L (Agricultural District) to R-S (Residential 
Suburban District) – Proposed Unrein Addition  

An request as been made for a change of zoning from A-L (Agricultural District) to R-
S (Residential Suburban District) within the proposed Unrein Addition (See attached 
visuals). 

Prior to setting a public hearing, staff is requesting the Planning Commission take an 
in depth look at the request and consider the points made by staff within this memo.  
After considering the known information, a public hearing may be set if it is found that 
the zoning request is to be considered further in a public hearing. 

Following is some information about the property to better help guide in the decision 
to set a public hearing for rezoning.  Many concerns have been raised about this 
possible development.  Although the development is adjacent to existing R-S zoning 
(Vonfeldt Addition, zoned and platted in 1977), it is in staff’s opinion that expanding 
the existing development further is not in the best interest of both the City and County 
for various reasons. Those reasons include: 

 There is no public water available, including rural water.  The developer 
intends on serving al the residential lots with private well only.  There are 
concerns from existing and abutting property owners who are served by water 
well what additional wells may do to current water levels.  Water wells should 
not be considered a reliable water source long term. 

 Ellis Co. Public Works staff has indicated a strong resistance to additional 
County roads that will require ongoing maintenance.  The developer has 
stated that the roads could remain private.  This raises other concerns about 
the future of private roads that will be expected to be maintained to a high 
standard and maintenance may get pushed on to the County in the future. 



 Page 2 

Expectations of homeowners along these types of County roads are often 
high and create a burden on the PW Department and County officials. 

 
 Staff with Ellis County rural fire has expressed general concerns about 

development of this type outside of the City limits where adequate structure 
fire protection is not available. 

 Midwest Energy does not have gas service available to serve this location. 

 There are conflicts with the proposed development access (Randall Lane) 
including a new power pole structure directly in the center of the drive.  KDOT 
has raised questions about the existing drive entrances into the existing 
development and how adding additional development may impact US 183 
Highway. 

 If approval to develop this property is justified, the question, “What next?” 
needs to be asked.  What if another 6 lots are considered, then another 6, and 
so on?  How many is enough?  Are there to many there now? 

 Having this many septic systems in such a close proximity to each other is a 
concern relating to water quality, particularly the water wells serving the 
existing homes as well as the proposed homes. 

 
Due to these and other possible issues, staff cannot favorably recommend this 
development to move forward.  Residential developments of this type have proved 
time and time again to be a drain on resources and create a burden for the general 
taxpayer who must absorb the costs of maintaining such developments for the long 
term.  Developments without adequate public infrastructure, including water, sanitary 
sewer, and adequate roads are discouraged and in some cases should be out-right 
prohibited.   
 







jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
Subject Area



jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Text Box
Proposed New Area

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
Existing Development




	15-03Z - 117 E 7th.pdf
	08-17-2015 Planning Commission Agenda Packet.pdf
	08-17-2015(1)
	15-07-13 Memo To PC - Carol Purdy Property Rezoning
	15-02Z 
	15-08-10 Memo To PC - 117 E 7th Property Rezoning (1)
	117 E 7th Map of Adjacent Zoning Districts
	117 E 7th Rezoning Map
	Parcel Details for 021 1601 E 27th Frontage
	07-20-2015.pdf
	07-20-2015 Planning Commission
	Parcel Details for 021 1601 E 27th Frontage






